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1 College of St Ignatius. General. Statement of income ‐ about 1853? Account of Medcalf 

Charity ‐ 1807‐1816.
[Mid 20th century]

2
Statement of income for the College of St Ignatius.  Covers the income for the entire College 
and gives more detail about the London, Westminster and Tunbridge Wells missions.  The 
London mission is burdened with a debt of £4417‐17‐10 and needs much more time to pay 
this off.  Westminster and Tunbridge Wells are similarly lacking in funds.

[1853]

Loose leaf Copy of letter from the Card[inal] Archb[ishop] of Westm[inster] supporting the purchase of 
a piece of land to the south of Victoria Street in order to build a large church there.   Copy of 
a note from [Fr] E[dward] T[heophilus] Hood [SJ] that the establishment of the church would 
not be prejudicial to the Society of Jesus.

[Cardinal Archbishop of 
Westminster]

30 June 1856 Creator not given

3‐9 Accounts of the Medcalf Charity. 1807‐1816. Details of the expenditure of the Charity for the 
poor of London, for schools and for the maintenance of boys at Stonyhurst. On folio 3 the 
title added in pencil, mid 20th century.

1807‐1816

10 List of packets of documents relating to the College of St Ignatius, Westminster.  List of 
Superiors from 1850‐1903. List of RC activity in Westminster from the reformation until 1853 
or later. 

[mid 20th century] Damaged at bottom.

11
List and brief description of documents from 1849‐1857. [mid 20th century]

12‐13 Letter from [Fr] William Cobb SJ to Rev[erend] Dr Wiseman about the parochial rights and 
duties of the church in Farm Street and that the Society should provide one member to serve 
a poor district of Wesminster.

 [Fr] William Cobb SJ 28 July 1849
Letter appears to be a draft copy.  20th century 
annotations saying there is another copy 
among the 'Farm St Papers'.

14 Copy of a letter from [Fr] William Cobb SJ to Dr Wiseman saying that  the Mission in 
Westminster should be entrusted to the Society of Jesus as this would be to the benefit of 
the district and fulfil the Society's obligations.

[Fr William Cobb SJ] 14 August 1850 Creator not given

15 Copy of list of conditions made by Nicholas Bishop of Melipam for the establishing of a 
chapel in Wesminter.  

[Nicholas Bishop of 
Melipham]

16 August 1850
Original under Coll[ege] St Ignatius ‐ 
Westminster. Creator not given

16
Letter from [Fr] W[illiam] Rowe [SJ] to F[r] [Charles] Brooke. Located at 5, College Street, 
Westminster, about the new mission at Westminster.  There is no mission house yet but a 
house near the mission should soon become available.  Religion is in a sad state in the 
locality.  There are lots of Catholics but it is difficult to bring them together.  He will give 
boys and girls, men and women Spiritual Exercises.  He has been appointed priest to 
Millbank Penitentiary, which brings a salary of £80 p.a. and hopes to be appointed to Tothill 
Fields Prison.  Since he has this quasi‐parochial district in Westminster he feels there should 
be an end to the plan to give a district to Farm Street.  F[r] [Randal] Lythgoe [SJ] has gone to 
Tunbridge Wells and F[r] Donull is at Farm Street.  He mentions the Irish College question.

[Fr] W[illiam] Rowe [SJ]  nd

17 Letter from [Fr] W[illiam] Rowe [SJ] to [Fr] G[eorge] Jenkins [SJ].  Acknowledges receipt of 
cheque.

[Fr] W[illiam] Rowe [SJ]  nd
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18

Letter from [Fr] Joseph Johnson [SJ].  The society is about to receive a legacy of £600, out of 
which will be paid £30 pa to Mrs Frank Middelton for life.  The recipient is to go with F[r] 
Corry to see the Cardinal and discuss the newly purchased site.  Find out if he means for  the 
Society to have the  district and does he still wish them to build a large church there.  A PS 
adds that he has just found out that the site is in Westminster and is unhealthy.

 [Fr] Joseph Johnson [SJ] June 1856 added in pencil, 20th century.

19 Letter from Cardinal  Wiseman to [Fr] Joseph  Johnson. Permission that Fr Johnson should 
purchase a site of land to the south of Victoria Street in Westminster, in order to erect a 
large church there.  Dr Manning is about to build a church nearby but this should not affect 
Fr Johnson's plans.  Also a note from [Fr] E[dward] T[heophilus] Hood [SJ] that Cardinal 
Wiseman had received them favourably.

Cardinal Wiseman 30 June 1856

20 Certificate registering St Mary's Westminster as a Place of Meeting for Religious Worship.  
Signed by James Henry Corry [SJ].

[Fr] James Henry Corry [SJ]. 9 October 1856

21‐26 A list of  the Society's property in the Mission of Westminster. Includes vestments, chalices, 
Missals.  Folio 24 has a list of the items' provenances.  Includes sketches of some of the 
items.

30 January 1905

27
List and brief summary of documents from 1882‐1903. [mid 20th century]

28
Letter from [Fr] E[dward] I[gnatius] Purbrick [SJ] [Provincial] to Fr Procurator [Fr George 
Sidgreaves], enclosing a statement from Fr Zanetti and asking his and Fr [Peter]Gallwey [SJ] 
's opinion. Discusses the question of Millbank Penitentiary and Wormwood Scrubbs prison.  
Recommends accepting the Government's appointment to the chaplaincy of Wormwood 
Scrubbs prison.  Anticipates strong opposition from Cardinal Manning.

[Fr] E[dward] I[gnatius] 
Purbrick [SJ] [Provincial]

15 July 1882

29 Letter from [Fr] Henry Martin SJ, to Fr [George] Sidgreaves SJ, [Procurator], concerning a 
cheque for £200 from the Newburgh Trust and another £100 left by Henry Martin's brother 
Charles for an annual Mass to be said in perpetuity at Westminster. PS that the Newburgh 
Trust has until now been strictly carried out.  

[Fr] Henry Martin SJ 12 May 1896

30 Memorandum that the Newburgh Masses were to be said at  St Mary's and that no provision 
was made for the closure of St Mary's. They should carry on being said as long as St Mary's 
exists and the stipend will be forwarded to the incumbent.  The Martin Masses will be given 
to some other Jesuit house.

31 Letter from [Fr] Henry Martin SJ  to  Fr [George] Sidgreaves SJ. Acknowledges receipt of a 
cheque.  Discusses the terms of the Newburgh Trust and says that the information required 
is contained in a black quarto book kept at Earl Street, which also contains a letter from the 
Countess of Newburgh.  He also says that the Charles Martin Legacy was £500 to the Mission 
in Wakefield in return for an annual Mass in perpetuity, and £500 to him to be used for 
schools.  

[Fr] Henry Martin SJ 23 November 1900
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32 Letter from [Fr] Reginald Colley SJ [Provincial] to the Father Procurator [Fr George 

Sidgreaves SJ] . The refuge at Ditton is overcrowded with children and they are worried 
about a visit from the sanitary inspectors.  The lawyers need to be hurried up.  The money 
from the Newburgh fund should not be paid annually.  When St Mary's closes it can be paid 
to another of the Society's churches.  The Martin fund will be reallocated to Stamford Hill by 
the Father General, together with all that is received from Westminster, and there is nothing 
that can be done about that.

[Fr]Reginald Colley SJ 
[Provincial]

30 April 1901

33
Letter from [Fr] Henry Martin SJ to Fr [George] Sidgreaves SJ. Concerning the Newburgh 
Trust, he considers the money was left by Lady Newburgh to the Society not to the mission 
at Westminster, and that she did not consider the possibility of them leaving Westminster.  
He suggests that Fr Scoles SJ might be able to shed more light on the matter.

[Fr] Henry Martin SJ 31 March 1903

34
Letter from [Fr] Scoles [SJ] to Fr [George] Sidgreaves [SJ]. He argues that the wording of the 
Newburgh Trust means that the money was given for Masses to be said at St Mary's and not 
given to the Society.  Lady Newburgh was a friend of the Society's and did not envisage that 
St Mary's would close, but the words used make it hard to argue that her money should not 
be used by the priests among the people of St Mary's.

[Fr] Scoles [SJ] 03 April 1903

35
List and brief summary in pencil of documents from 1903 and 1904. mid 20th century

36 Copy of a letter from William Roskill Munster and Weld.  They understand that service has 
been discontinued in the Horseferry Road church and that the key has been given by Father 
[Francis] Green [SJ] to Father [George] Sidgreaves [SJ].  They ask for a cheque for £310, as 
arranged.  

[William Roskill Munster and 
Weld]

22 June 1903 Creator not given

37 Letter from A J Blount of Blount, Lynch and Petre to Father [George] Sidgreaves [SJ].  The 
late Cardinal agreed that £310 should be paid to surrender the lease of the Chapel on 
Horseferry Road on the 24th June 1902 or when the new Cathedral should be opened.  Now 
that this has been done, the £310 is payable.

A J Blount of Blount, Lynch 
and Petre.

30 June 1903

38 Letter from A J Blount of Blount, Lynch and Petre to Father [George] Sidgreaves [SJ].  Asks 
that a declaration be made dealing with the leasehold interest which was vested in the 
Diocesan Authorities.  This has already been explained to Father [Joseph] Blackett [SJ].  A 
declaration will have to be made by Father William Splaine [SJ] regarding the date of death 
of Father Cyprian Splaine [SJ].

A J Blount of Blount, Lynch 
and Petre.

19 May 1904

39 Letter from  Blount, Lynch and Petre to Father [George] Sidgreaves [SJ], about the 
Horseferry Road property.  The new owners want to know what they should do with human 
remains they have found on the site. A copy of the letter from the new owners' solicitors is 
enclosed.

Blount, Lynch and Petre 08 April 1905

40 Copy of a letter from Davis and Bennett and Sykes, solicitors for the new owners of the 
Horseferry Road site.  It describes how a coffin was found during excavations with an 
inscription saying in contains the body of Rev[erend] Charle s Adam Adrin Lengrenay, d 3 
September 1819.  They want to know what should be done with it and wonder whether the 
coroner should be informed.  

[Davis and Bennett and 
Sykes, solicitors]

07 April 1905 Creator not given
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41

A small sheet of mathematical working out.  Titled Westminster Interest Due. 1 July 1896

42‐43 Account of Blount and Lynch and Petre re Sale of land and church in Horseferry Road.  Two 
pages from an account book, showing all the charges due.  

1903‐1904

44
List  and short description of documents 1852‐1854 relating to church expansion. mid 20th century

45‐46
Account or estimate for enlargement of St Mary's church in Horseferry Road, made by 
Edward  M[artin] Foxhall and addressed to Father [John] Etheridge [SJ] [Provincial].

Edward M[artin] Foxhall 6 September 1852
Damaged and largely illegible.  Conservation  
done in the past.

47
Certificate issued by the Office of Metropolitan Buildings, certifying that the new works at St 
Mary's Horseferry Road are safe.  Signed William Hosking and John Shaw, official referees.

William Hosking and John 
Shaw, of the Office of 
Metropolitan Buildings. 

16 December 1852

48
Cover paper from Edward  M[artin] Foxhall, relating to Westminster. 18 December 1852

49 Letter from Edward  M[artin] Foxhall to Father [John] Etheridge [SJ] [Provincial].  It 
accompanies an estimate for a new Sacristy for St Mary's Romney Terrace, Westminster, 
and the cost is more than either of them expected.  

Edward  M[artin] Foxhall 1 July 1854
Damaged and partly illegible.  Conservation 
work done in the past.

50 List and short description of documents 1851‐1854 relating to Romney Terrace, 
Westminster.

mid 20th century

51
Letter covering an account for £6.6.0 from Robert Blackamore against E[dward] T[heophilus] 
Hood [SJ] for advice given for a purchase in Romney Terrace, Westminster. 

Robert Blackamore 22 November 1851
Damaged and partly illegible.  Conservation 
work done in the past.

52
Receipt for £6.6.0 from Robert Blackamore. Robert Blackamore 24 November 1851

Damaged and partly illegible.  Conservation  
work done in the past.

53‐54 Account for £6.6.0 from Robert Blackamore against E[dward] T[heophilus] Hood [SJ] for 
advice given for a purchase in Romney Terrace, Westminster. 

Robert Blackamore 21‐23 April 1851
Damaged and partly difficult to read.  
Conservation work done in the past.

55‐59
Inventory of the furniture and effects at 9 Romney Terrace, Westminster,  of Rev Dr. Magee, 
sold to Fr W[illiam] Rowe [SJ].   

May 1851
Damaged in the past with some parts missing.  
Conservation work done in the past.

60‐64
Inventory of the furniture and effects of Rev Dr. Magee, sold to [Fr] W[illiam] Rowe [SJ].    May 1851

Substantial damage in the past, partly illegible.  
Conservation work done in the past.

65 Letter from [Fr] John Etheridge [SJ] [Provincial] to [Fr] [George] Jenkins [SJ], asking him to 
check the valuation and report back to him, and to ask Dr Magee to wait for 6 months for 
payment.  He gives him his authority to settle the claim.

[Fr] John Etheridge [SJ] 
[Provincial]

4 June 1852 Past damage and conservation work.

66
Letter from Dr Magee to [Fr George] Jenkins [SJ], asking for payment for furniture. Dr Magee 5 June 1851

Damaged and partly difficult to read.  
Conservation work done in the past.

67
Letter from E[dward] M[artin] Foxhall to Fr Brownhill [SJ].  He has received the receipt for 
the 30 paid to Dr Magee and has paid a further £2.2.0. to Mr Lockyer.  Father Brownhill is to 
put the receipts with the Westminster Papers and to send him a cheque for £32.2.0

E[dward] M[artin] Foxhall 28 December 1854
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68 Receipt of payment of £2.2.0. from Mr James Lockyer for a survey of dilapidation done on 9 

Romney Terrace, Westminster.
Mr James Lockyer

69 Letter from EdwardM[artin] Foxhall to Fr Jenkins [SJ] acknowleging receipt of a cheque for 
£32.2.0

EdwardM[artin] Foxhall 30 December 1854 Past damage and conservation work.

70
Receipt of  payment of thirty pounds to Dr Magee from Fr [William] Rowe [SJ] in respect of 
dilapidation of the house and contents at 9 Romney Terrace, Westminster.

23 December 1854

71
List and short description of documents relating to Romney Terrace ground rent, 1851‐2. mid 20th century

72 Letter from [Fr] W[illiam] Rowe [SJ] about the ground rent payable on 9 Romney Terrace, 
which Dr Magee is refusing to pay.  Dr Magee has paid the rent in the past and therefore 
should accept he is liable for it.

[Fr] W[illiam] Rowe [SJ] 20 July [1851]
Past damage and conservation work. Bottom of 
letter missing.

73
Letter from [Fr] W[illiam] Rowe [SJ] about the ground rent payable on 9 Romney Terrace. 
Urges matter is settled quickly.

[Fr] W[illiam] Rowe [SJ] 24 July [1851]
Substantial damage in the past, largely illegible.  
conservation work done in the past. Bottom of 
letter missing.

74 Letter from A Vincent Harding concerning the ground rent of £37.10.0 payable on 9 Romney 
Terrace, which is much overdue.  He suggests applying to the Council of Administration.  
Mentions Dr [Robert] Whitty [SJ].

A Vincent Harding 24 July 1851
Very stained and damaged at the bottom, 
where it is illegible.  Past conservation work.

75
Letter from A Vincent Harding concerning the ground rent for 9 Romney Terrace.  He has 
paid the ground rent at the request of  [Fr] W[illiam] Rowe [SJ].

A Vincent Harding 31 July 1851
Substantial damage in the past, largely illegible.  
Conservation work done in the past. Bottom of 
letter missing.

76 Letter from Joseph Harding, brother of A Vincent Harding enclosing a letter from about a 
client of theirs, Mr Ward of Bristol who claims an interest in the property [9 Romney 
Terrace].

Joseph Harding 19 February 1852 Very badly damaged, with a section detached.

77 List and short description of documents pertaining to Gt. Peter St Schools, Westminster, 
1856‐1858.  

mid 20th century

78 Letter from Mr Hope Scott to Fr [Edward Theophilus] Hood [SJ] concerning a site for a 
proposed school in Westminster.

Mr Hope Scott 2 January 1856
Very stained and damaged and hard to read.  
Past conservation work done.

79 Copies of 2 letters to Mr J R Hope Scott  from [Fr Joseph Johnson SJ] thanking him for his 
interest in establishing Poor Schools in Westminster and for his gift of paintings to the 
Society's Theological Colleges.

[Fr Joseph Johnson SJ] 29 January 1905
Very stained and damaged and hard to read.  
Past conservation work done. Creator not 
given.

80‐81 Committee of Council on Education to [Fr] W[illiam] Waterworth [SJ].  They have received 
his memorial for a grant for the building of new schools in Westminster.  However they 
question that a school for 800 children is needed and instead suggest one for 150 boys, 150 
girls and 100 infants,  in separate rooms.

Committee of Council on 
Education

21 February 1856

82‐83 Committee of Council on Education to [Fr] W[illiam] Waterworth [SJ], concerning the 
proposed new schools in Westminster. An adequate playground needs to be provided 
especially for the infants, and a shop and Public House may need to be demolished to allow 
this.  Plans need to be submitted. 

Committee of Council on 
Education

3 April 1856

84
Letter to [Fr] W[illiam] Waterworth [SJ] from the Education Department, Downing Street, 
confirming the grant of £1000.0.0 towards the building and furnishing of a school.

Education Department, 
Downing Street

15 April 1857
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85 Letter to Fr E[dward] T[heophilus] Hood [SJ] from the Education Department, Downing 

Street, that they are satisfied that the  conditions for the Grant have been met, except that 
plans and specifications need to be lodged with them.  They are sending a Letter of 
Authority which must be signed and returned.  

Education Department, 
Downing Street

15 March 1858

86 Letter to Fr E[dward] T[heophilus] Hood [SJ] from the Education Department, Downing 
Street, that they have received the Letter of Authority and that he can draw the bill from the 
Paymaster General.

Education Department, 
Downing Street

23 March 1858

87
List of documents about the Gt Peter's Street Schools. mid 20th century

88
Letter from Edward M[artin] Foxhall to Fr [Edward Theophilus] Hood [SJ], regarding building 
work done on the Great Peter Street School by Mr Isaac Williamson and Mr Smith.

Edward M[artin] Foxhall 2 March 1857

89‐90 Bill from Isaac Williamson and Son for building work, to [Fr] William Waterworth [SJ].  
Certified by Edward M[artin] Foxhall.

Isaac Williamson and Son  April‐July 1856 
Certification byEdward M[artin] Foxhall dated 9 
October 1856

91‐92 Bill from Boyd and Chapman, Furnishing Ironmongers,to [Fr] [James] Corry [SJ] for  £154.4.0 
for supplying and fitting fireplaces and ovens to Great Peter Street.

Boyd and Chapman May‐June 1857 Note added: Great Peter Street 25 July 1857

93
Receipt from Boyd and Chapman, Furnishing Ironmongers, for payment of £154.4.0 Boyd and Chapman 28 August 1857

94
Bill from Boyd and Chapman, Furnishing Ironmongers, to [Fr James] Corry for £9.19.3 for 
supplying fenders, coal hods, shovels etc for the Great Peter Street Schools.  Note added by 
[Edward Martin Foxhall] that a cheque has been received from [Fr] James Corry [SJ].

Boyd and Chapman
November‐December 
1857

Note added: £9.19.0 paid 9 January 1858

95 Bill from George Smith, Builder, for  £2607.15.2 to Fr Joseph Johnson.  Acknowledges receipt 
of four payments  of £500.0.0 and one of £607.15.2

George Smith, Builder 2 October 1857

96
Letter from Edward M[artin] Foxhall to Fr [William] Waterworth [SJ], certifying that George 
Smith should be paid the third payment of £500.  He comments that the windows are now 
all made but not fitted and that the weather is causing delay.

 Edward M[artin] Foxhall 12 February 1857

97‐98 Bill from George Smith to Fr [William] Waterworth [SJ]  for building works at the Great Peter 
Street Schools, for £206.19.5.  He outlines extra work which was necessary and not included 
in the original estimate.  

George Smith, Builder 17 April 1857

99 Letter from Edward M[artin] Foxhall, to [Fr] William Walworth [SJ], that the last payment of 
£500 is now due to George Smith.  The Society will now have paid £2000.0.0, so the 
architect's fee of 5% is due.

Edward M[artin] Foxhall 28 April 1857

100‐101 Voucher for joinery work done at Great Peter Street Schools, from George Smith for 
£43.9.11

George Smith, Builder June 1857

102 Letter from Edward M[artin] Foxhall to Fr [William] Waterworth [SJ] explaining that due to 
unforseen extra work and costs the final bill for the Great Peter Street School will be 
£2763.9.2½.

Edward M[artin] Foxhall 15 September 1857

103‐104 List of payments and vouchers for work on the Great Peter Street Schools addressed to Fr 
[William] Waterworth [SJ] and others.  Total amount, £607.15.2½

Edward M[artin] Foxhall 15 September 1857
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105

Memorandum of the extra work needed for the Great Peter Street Schools, including 
rebuilding the party walls to the Public House.  Total amount, £607.15.2½

Edward M[artin] Foxhall 16 September 1857

106 Letter from Edward M[artin] Foxhall to [Fr] William Waterworth [SJ], certifying that the 
extra work carried out by George Smith is due the amount of £607.15.2½

Edward M[artin] Foxhall 17 September 1857

107 Letter from Edward  M[artin] Foxhall to Fr [Edward Theophilus] Hood [SJ], concerning his 
architect's fees.

Edward M[artin] Foxhall 24 October 1857

108
Memorandum from Edward M[artin] Foxhall giving details of his architect's fees of £56.5.5 Edward M[artin] Foxhall 23 October 1857

109
Receipt from George Smith, builder, for ten guineas received from [Fr] Joseph Johnson SJ. George Smith, Builder 11 January 1858

110
List and short description of papers relating to the Great Peter Street Schools 1874‐1883. mid 20th century

111
Copy of a letter from [Fr] Vincent Bond [SJ] to Currie and Williams, Solicitors.  Explains 
necessity of enlarging the Poor School in Great Peter Street in order to retain a government 
grant.  £500 is needed and he suggests that this might be borrowed against the  Public 
House.  He asks about the terms on which they hold the Public House.  The long illness of Mr 
Hope Scott means it has been impossible to discuss the matter with him.  

 [Fr Vincent Bond SJ] June 1874 Creator not given

112
Letter to Currie and Williams from Crawley and Arnold, solicitors acting on behalf of Mr 
Gibbs who owns the building next to the Great Peter St Schools.  He objects to the plans for 
rebuilding because of the resulting restriction of light and air to his building.

Crawley and Arnold, 
Solicitors

7 July 1874

113‐114
Letter to Crawley and Arnold from Currie and Williams.  They feel Mr Gibbs has no grounds 
for complaint about lack of air and light to his building as he has recently erected his building 
without without providing for light and air himself.  It is not due to the neighbours to provide 
this for his building.  The new building would not block air supply any way, and by lime 
washing the ventilation shaft better light will be afforded.

Currie and Williams, 
Solicitors

13 July 1874

115 Letter to Currie and Williams from Crawley and Arnold, that Mr Gibbs will allow the Trustees 
to build the extension to the school, without prejudice to his rights.  He will be allowed 
access to whiten the walls, and suggests an even better solution would be the use of vitrified 
hite bricks in the ventilation shaft.

Crawley and Arnold, 
Solicitors

14 July 1874

116
Letter to Crawley and Arnold from Currie and Williams.  Mr Gibbs has no rights whatsoever 
over the building plans of the Trustees of the School.  However, no doubt he will be 
permitted to white wash the walls.  Vitreous white bricks will be too expensive.

Currie and Williams, 
Solicitors

15 July 1874

117
Letter from Currie, Williams and Williams to Fr Foley [SJ].  Discussses the terms of the lease 
of the Elephant and Castle Public House to Watneys.  Also discusses the problems caused by 
the death of all the Trustees of the Great Peter Street School,  Mr Hope Scott, Mr Ballasis 
and Mr Badeley, and difficulties in getting new Trustees appointed.

Currie, Williams and 
Williams, Solicitors

2 January 1882
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118‐119

Letter accompanying a bill for 48.9.10.
Currie, Williams and 
Williams, Solicitors

26 July 1883

120
List and brief summary of documents relating to an abandoned scheme, where ground was 
bought for a large church near Victoria, but afterwards disposed of. 1850‐1852

mid 20th century

121 Letter from Thomas Swithion to [Fr William Cobb SJ, Provincial].  He has applied to the 
Westminster Commissioners about a plan of the land being considered for purchase.  The 
price they are asking, £5000, is far too high.

Thoma s Swithion 19 November 1850
Damaged at  bottom and some text destroyed.  
Conservation work undertaken in the past.

122‐123
Letter from [Fr] William Rowe [SJ] to [Fr John Etheridge SJ].  He has been looking for a 
suitable site for the church on the new Street but has found no single site, however Mr 
Elliott has a site with a frontage on Victoria Street. Sgt Bellasis is enquiring about this.  
Another property is at the disposal of the Westminster Commissionary, but they are felt to 
be opposed to used by the Catholic Church. However, he suggests this is an opportune time 
because Parlaiment is being conciliatory to Irish Catholics.

[Fr] William Rowe [SJ] 9 February [1852]
Letter stained and hard to read.  Conservation 
work undertaken in the past.

124‐125
Letter from [Fr] William Rowe [SJ] to [Fr John Etheridge SJ].  Sgt Bellasis had an interview 
with the chairman of the Commissioners, who felt there would be no objection to the 
application.  However, there are restictions imposed on the proposed site on Victoria Street.  
They need to act fast, and he suggests that Fr Etheridge comes to town to see for himself.

[Fr] William Rowe [SJ] 16 February 1852
Letter stained, damaged at bottom and hard to 
read.  Conservation work undertaken in the 
past.

126
Copy of letter from Harvey Aston on behalf of the Westminster Improvement 
Commissioners.  They have received the letter and plan from Mr Hope and Sgt Bellasis but 
forsee great difficulties in buying the chosen site.  

[Harvey Ashton 
(Westminster Improvement 
Commissioners)]

10 March 1852
Letter stained, damaged at bottom and hard to 
read.  Conservation work undertaken in the 
past. Creator not given.

127 Copy of letter from Thomas  Bellings, clerk to the Westminster Commissioners, about the 
Roman Catholic Chapel site.  The Commissioners have disposed of part of the land to St 
Margaret's Hospital and the Dean and Chapter of Westminster, so it is no longer available 
for the Roman Catholic Chapel.

[Thoma s Bellings, clerk to 
the Westminster 
Commissioners]

19 June 1852
Letter stained, damaged at bottom and hard to 
read.  Conservation work undertaken in the 
past. Creator not given.

128
Letter from [Curry and Williams].  They are now looking for a suitable site to purchase 
belonging to a private individual. 

[Curry and Williams] 21 June 1852
Letter stained, damaged and hard to read.  
Conservation work undertaken in the past.

129 Letter from [Fr] William Rowe [SJ] giving an account of his meeting with the Westminster 
Commissioners which turned down the application to buy the site on behalf of the Catholic 
Church.

Fr Rowe 11 August 1852
Letter stained, damaged at bottom and hard to 
read.  Conservation work undertaken in the 
past.

130 List and short description of documents relating to ground for proposed large church near 
Victoria.

mid 20th century

131
Letter from Robert Cheere, to William Williams, offering a site in Westminster, on Dacre 
Street, for £667.3.  

Robert Cheere 6 November 1852
Letter stained, damaged at top and hard to 
read in parts.  Conservation work undertaken in 
the past.

132
Letter from William Williams to Fr [William] Rowe [SJ], forwarding on Robert Cheere's offer 
of land.  Copies have also gone to Mr Hope and Sgt Bellasis. 

Mr Williams 8 November 1852
Letter stained, damaged at bottom and hard to 
read in parts.  Conservation work undertaken in 
the past.



Calendar of Bound Volumes MSB/4 College of St Ignatius College of St Ignatius 1807‐1909 9

Folio Description Creator Date Language Notes
133 Letter from [William Williams] to [Mr Hope and Sgt Bellasis] saying if the price and the site 

are both suitable, there is no impediment to this purchase.
[William Williams]

Letter very damaged.  Conservation work 
undertaken in the past.

134
Letter from [Fr] William Rowe [SJ] to [Fr John Etheridge SJ].  He encloses 2 letters from Mr 
Williams.  He sees the only way of proceeding with a Westminster Mission is to build their 
own building on their own land.  Mr Cheere's offer of land for sale is acceptable.  The 
Cardinal is bound to hear of it, and to buy it through his Chaplain, Rev. J O'Neil, if the Society 
does not purchase the land.  He also foresees difficulties with the Commissioners. 

Fr Rowe 9 November [1852]
Letter stained, damaged at bottom and hard to 
read in parts.  Conservation work undertaken in 
the past.

135
Letter from [Fr] Joseph  Johnson [SJ]. He has reluctantly decided not to spend more than 
5000 on the land in Westminster offered to the Society, even though this may adversly 
affect the project [to build a church].  He asks to know the exact amount of money in the 
funds belonging to Mr Houlgrave, and when it was put in the funds.  

[Fr] Joseph Johnson [SJ] 3 October 1855

136
2 letters from Fr Joseph  Johnson [SJ] to Fr [Edward] Hood [SJ].  Thanks him for information 
about the Cardinal's wish.  Mr Jackson's scheme would give the Society 200 feet of street 
frontage, which he thinks is a great gain for little risk.  He asks what Fr Walworth [SJ] thinks. 
2nd letter concerning Poor Schools in Chesterfield, saying that there are about 200 Catholic 
children there who should be attending school. The Scholastics at St Bueno's, the Seminary 
and Beaumont should support themselves if they have the money.

[Fr] Joseph Johnson [SJ] 22 November 1855
Annotation in red ink: Fr Johnson's letters to Fr 
Hood on Office matters.

137 Letter from [Fr] Joseph Johnson [SJ].  The money from Holywell is to be sold.  £1000 is to be 
sent to Fr Bird.  Discusses arrangements for the purchase of Plessyr. Regarding Westminster, 
suitable freehold land can not be found and despite Mr Jackson's offer, the money can not 
be risked as it is needed for supporting Scholastics. He gives £10 to be used for the 
Westminster poor.

[Fr] Joseph Johnson [SJ] 28 January 1856

138 List and brief description of documents relating to land for the proposed church near 
Victoria. 1856‐1902.

mid 20th century

139‐142 Account made out to Fr Joseph  Johnson [SJ] from Tucker and New, Solicitors, for services 
rendered in buying a plot of land in Westminster. Total £9211.11.4

Tucker and New, Solicitors
July 1856‐ 27 August 
1858

143
Letter from [Fr] Joseph Johnson [SJ].  The Society may need to dispose of part of the 
Westminster purchase.  Two names will be needed for the title deed.  He suggests Fr 
Cardwell and his brother, [Fr William Cardwell SJ and Fr Richard Cardwell SJ], or  himself and 
his brother [Fr Joseph Johnson SJ and Fr William Johnson SJ], Fr Ralph or Rev Carper.

[Fr] Joseph Johnson [SJ] 15 October 1856

144 Letter from Tucker and New to Fr McCann [SJ].  Discusses paying off the £7000, and advise 
that a formal notice to pay is necessary.  Encloses a copy of a letter from Messrs. Bridges 
saying that their clients will not be able dispense with a 6 month notice period unless 
another securty is offered.

Tucker and New, Solicitors April 29 1859

145
Letter from Tucker and New to Fr [Henry] McCann [SJ], enclosing an account. Tucker and New, Solicitors 20 August 1859

146 Letter from Tucker, New and Lansdale to Fr H[enry] McCan [SJ], enclosing a cheque for 
£95.17.6 from interest due on the Mortgage of the Westminster land.

Tucker, New and Lansdale, 
Solicitors

2 May 1871
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147

Letter from A.J. Blount of Blount, Lynch and Petre, Solicitors, to Fr George  Sidgreaves [SJ], 
concerning Spinkhill, where Fr Parker is to be admitted as one of the new joint owners, and 
Westminster where Fr Proctor is to inspect the memorial of the conveyance. 

A.J. Blount of Blount, Lynch 
and Petre, Solicitors

23 April 1890

148
Plan of Victoria Street, Westminster, showing the new streets and lines of thoroughfare 
under the powers of the Westminster improvement acts of 1845 and 1847.

nd A large fold out plan, in delicate condition.

149
List and brief description of documents relating to 7 York Buildings, Adelphi.  mid 20th century

150‐151 Letter to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] from A.J. Blount, of Blount, Lynch and Petre, Solicitors, 
discussing 7 York Buildings, Adelphi,which was recently given to the Society by Miss 
Sparrow.  Discusses dealings with the tennants and asks whether the Society means to keep 
or sell the property.

A.J. Blount, of Blount, Lynch 
and Petre, Solicitors

20 December 1888

152 Letter to Fr George Sidgreaves [SJ] from A.J. Blount, of Blount, Lynch and Petre, Solicitors 
concerning 7 York Buildings.  He has instructed the Alliance Insurance company to insure the 
building for 800 under the name of Fr Johnson.  He suggest getting a survey done of the 
house.

A.J. Blount, of Blount, Lynch 
and Petre, Solicitors

22 December 1888

153 Letter to Blount, Lynch and Petre, Solicitors, from Thurgood and Martin, Auctioneers, 
suggesting a reserve price of £1250 for the house at 7 York Buildings.

Thurgood and Martin, 
Auctioneers

25 May 1889

154
Letter from A.J. Blount, of Blount, Lynch and Petre, Solicitors, to Fr George Sidgreaves [SJ] 
concerning 7 York Buildings. He encloses the letter from the Auctioneers and reminds Fr 
Sidgreaves [SJ] that duty of about £100 will have to be paid from the proceeds of the sale.

A.J. Blount, of Blount, Lynch 
and Petre, Solicitors

27 May 1889

155
List of documents about 9 Hill Street. mid 20th century

156‐157 Letter from Robert Blackamore, to Fr George  Jenkins [SJ]  discussing the terms for letting or 
selling 9 Hill Street, and that the Coach House is an appurtenance to the house, which is 
currently let furnished.  Advises it is better to deal directly with the current owner than his 
agents.

Robert Blackamore 1 November 1845

158‐159 Letter from Robert Blackamore, to Fr George Jenkins [SJ] assuring him that he is negotiating 
for the house and coach house on Hill Street on the Society's behalf.  The vendor, Mr 
Murray, is currently in Scotland, which will cause delay.  The vendor and his lawyers do not 
know that it is the Society wishing to buy the house, if they did they would raise the price.  
Blackamore wishes Fr Jenkins to acknowledge receipt of a previously sent cheque for rent 
from Mr Mills.

Robert Blackamore 6 November 1845

160
Letter to Fr George  Jenkins [SJ] from Robert Blackamore, to say their offer of £6200 was 
rejected for 9 Hill Street but that £6400 was accepted.  Possession of the stables and coach 
house will be given on  2 March 1846 and the house and fixtures on 16th March 1845, and 
that the vendor reserves the right to hold a sale of the furniture before then.

Robert Blackamore 10 December 1845
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161 Letter  from Rob[er]t Blackamore to Fr G[eorge] Jenkins [SJ].  He encloses a letter from 

Johnson and Jeanes, agents for the vendor of 9 Hill Street, Mr Murray. He also encloses 
particulars of sale of a house at 14 York Place, to be sold on 20 January 1846.  He reminds Fr 
Jenkins of the necessity of fire insurance and recommends an insurance company in which 
he has an interest.

Rob[er]t Blackamore 19 December 1845

162 Copy of a letter from Johnston and Jeanes, Solicitors for Mr Murray owner of 9 Hill Street, to 
Rober t Blackamore, accepting terms for the sale of the house.

[Johnston and Jeanes, 
Solicitors]

18 December 1845 Creator not given

163 Letter  from R[obert] Blackamore to Fr G[eorge] Jenkins [SJ]. About 14 York Place, he asks 
that the receipts for rent and fire insurance are sent to him.  About 9 Hill Street, he has 
discovered that the lease has only 46 years to run instead of 56, so has asked for a reduction 
in the purchase price.

R[obert] Blackamore 7 February 1846

164‐165
Letter to Fr R[andal] Lythgoe [SJ] from R[obert] Blackamore about the purchase of 9 Hill 
Street.  The seller's agents ask if the Society is interested in buying the furniture, which is 
worth about £1500.  If not, they wish to advertise it for sale very soon.

R[obert] Blackamore 26 February 1846
Note added by Fr Newsham, that if there is a 
public sale they can buy what they want from it.

166 Copy of letter from R[obert] Blackamore to A Dobie about 9 Hill Street, dated 10 March 
1846, stating that the purchase price needs to be reduced as the length of the lease is 
shorter than previously stated, 46 years instead of 56.  Copy of letter from A Dobie to Robert 
Blackamore, dated 11 March 1846, saying that it will take several days to communicate with 
the seller but he can offer a reduction of £100.

[R[obert] Blackamore]
10 March 1846 and 11 
March 1846

Creator not given

167
Letter from Robert Blackamore, to Fr George  Jenkins [SJ]about 9 Hill Street, saying that he 
does not think that a reduction of 100 is very much but that he does not know how much is 
the correct amount.  He suggests consulting a competent person.  

Robert Blackamore 11 March 1846

168
Letter from R[obert] Blackamore, to Fr George  Jenkins [SJ] about 9 Hill Street.  He encloses 2 
particulars of sale of the first and second days of the sale of the furniture.

R[obert] Blackamore 27 March 1846

169‐174
Catalogue of furniture sale at 9 Hill Street, to be held on Tuesday 31 March 1846.

Some annotations, perhaps of personal reserve 
prices.

175‐180 Catalogue of the second day of the furniture sale at 9 Hill Street, to be held on Wednesday 1 
April 1846.

Some annotations, perhaps of personal reserve 
prices.

181 Letter from R[obert] Blackamore to Fr G[eorge] Jenkins [SJ], about 9 Hill Street, asking in 
which name the property will be bought and kept.

R[obert] Blackamore 11 July 1846

182
Letter from Robert Blackamore to Fr George Jenkins [SJ] about the sale of 9 Hill Street. Asks 
if he wants to buy the furniture for about £1000‐£1500.  Blackamore is sure he can get a 
reduction in the asking price for the house due to the shorter lease.

Robert Blackamore 26 July 1846

183‐184 Account addressed to [Fr] R[andal] Lythgoe [SJ] and [Fr] G[eorge] Jenkins [SJ] from R[obert] 
Blackmore for £6479.3.9, for the purchase of 9 Hill Street.

R[obert] Blackmore
18 August 1846‐
November 1846
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185

Letter from David Hertslet, Clerk of the Sewers Office.  A new sewer is to be laid in Hill 
Street, deeper than the existing one, and work will be needed on the drains of the individual 
houses at the same time.  Any cesspools are to be filled in.

David Hertslet, Clerk of the 
Sewers Office

26 September 1846

186 Letter from William Wright for Thomas Jackson to [Fr] R[andal] Lythgoe [SJ], saying he can 
do the proposed work on 9 Hill Street for £310.

 William Wright 14 April 1847

187 Letter from William Wright for Thomas Jackson to [Fr] R[andal] Lythgoe [SJ] saying that he 
can do the work on 9 Hill Street, including the additional window for £320.

 William Wright 16 April 1847

188
Estimate for plumbing works at 9 Hill Street, for £13.10.0 1847

Endosed with a note saying agreeing to do the 
work.  Signed William Wright for T Jackson.  
Sketches on verso.

189
Plumbing specifications for 9 Hill Street, addressed to Mr Blackburn, plumber. M. Tarrant 25 July 1846

190‐191
Schedule of prices for the works to be done at 9 Hill Street, for [Fr] R[andal] Lythgoe [SJ]. Thomas Jackson, Plumber. 25 June 1847

192 Voucher for extra Plumbing work at 9 Hill Street, signed by William Wright for T[homas] 
Jackson

4 September 1847

193
Specification for a new cistern in the north attic of 9 Hill Street. M. Tarrant 20 September 1847

194 Letter to [Fr George] Jenkins [SJ] from M. Tarrant, giving a revised account, due to an error in 
the calculations of the number of days work done by the plumber.

M. Tarrant nd

195
Letter from John Rolfe, accompanying the certificate showing purchase of a grave. John Rolfe 17 November 1848

196
Extract from the Register of Graves and Vaults purchased at All Soul's Catholic Cemetery, 
Chelsea, showing Family Grave no.90 purchased by [Fr] J[ames] Brownbill [SJ]for £8.8.0

John Rolfe 17 November 1848

197
List of documents relating to 9 Hill Street. mid 20th century

198 Letter from J Douglas to [Fr George] Jenkins [SJ], concerning letting the stables of 9 Hill 
Street to  Miss King for an initial period of one year, for £35.  Discusses arrangements for 
repair and maintenance.

J. Douglas 30 March 1849

199
Letter from J Douglas to [Fr George] Jenkins [SJ], concerning letting the stables of 9 Hill 
Street to  Miss King.  She is keen to complete and will do so at the 4 oclock tomorrow.

J. Douglas 30 April 1849

200 Memorandum of an agreement between [Fr] Randall [Randal] Lythgoe  [SJ] and [Fr] George 
Jenkins [SJ], and the Honourable Emily King, to let the stables and coach house of 9 Hill 
Street.

1 May 1849

201
Schedule to the memorandum, giving a brief inventory of the stables and coach house. 1 May 1849
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202

Statement from James Lockyer,  Surveyor, about the dilapidations on the leased property of 
25 Bolton Street, owned by the Hon. Horatio George Powys Townsend and rented to Richard 
Verity for 21 years.  A fee of £48.0.0 is required to make the repairs.

James Lockyer, Surveyor 4 March 1850

203 Letter from J. A. Douglas to [Fr] George  Jenkins [SJ] advising him to pay the sum suggested 
by the Surveyor for dilapidations on 25 Bolton Street.

J. A. Douglas  11 March 1850

204 Letter from [Fr] G[eorge] Jenkins [SJ]  to [Fr Edward Hood SJ]. Discusses baptism at Spanish 
Place Chapel, and that Fr Scott never kept a register of baptism there.  Fr Lythgoe started a 
Register of Baptisms, but did it very badly.  He also discusses Jesuits being Army Chaplains 
and advises against, but adds that the Pope may send them all to India to be shot or carried 
off by cholera.

[Fr] G[eorge] Jenkins [SJ] 9 July 1858

205
List of documents relating to 22 Hill Street mid 20th century

206‐207
Survey and valuation by Osborn and Mercer to Philip Witham Esq, for 22 Hill Street and 
stabling at 33 Farm Street.  They both need a little work to bring them up to modern 
standards but the unexpired 32 years of the lease could be sold for about £10000.

Osborn and Mercer 2 April 1898

208 Letter from N. I. Richards of the National Provincial Bank to New and William and Co, 
confirming an advance of 13000, to be reduced to 9000, on 22 Hill Street.

N. I. Richards, National 
Provincial Bank 

7 May 1898

209
Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] accompanying a copy of a letter 
from Osborn and Mercer, concerning the sale of 22 Hill Street.  He does not advise the house 
is put up for sale.  On the back is the copy, advising that if the Rev. Owen Williams does not 
decide to buy the property it should be put up for auction.

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

24 May 1898

210 Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ]  concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street, advising that General Owen Williams will not buy it, but suggests that negotiating 
with Lord Fitzhardinge's lawyers for another 50 years to add to the current 33 years on the 
lease will make it more saleable.

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

9 June 1898

211
Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street, about extending the lease.  He also warns him against unscrupulous agents. 

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

10 June 1898

212 Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street,  reminding him that he is waiting to hear back on the subject of extending the lease.  
There are several people interested in the house.

Richard Witham  of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

23 June 1898

213 Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street, concerning stamp duty of £70.7.6, also the Osborn and Mercer have 2 or 3 people 
interested in the house.

Richard Witham  of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

18 July 1898

214
Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street, and acknowledging receipt of a cheque for £70.7.6

Richard Witham  of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

20 July 1898
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215 Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 

Street.  Osborn and Mercer are sure the house will sell in the autumn, and that the question 
of the stables is not putting off sellers, as stables are easily available in the area.  Lord 
Fitzhardinge will not renew the lease.

Richard Witham  of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

21 July 1898

216
Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street, saying that Lord Camperdown has got 2000 more out of us than he should have.  
Osborn and Mercer are still confident they can sell the house in October.

Richard Witham  of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

11 August 1898

217
Letter from Witham, Roskill, Munster and Weld to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning 
the sale of 22 Hill Street, saying that they have heard from Osborn and Mercer that Mrs 
Robinson wants to continue to rent the rooms over the stables until 29th September.

Witham, Roskill, Munster 
and Weld

26 August 1898

218
Letter from Witham, Roskill, Munster and Weld to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning 
the sale of 22 Hill Street acknowledging that Mrs Robinson can stay until 29th September.

Witham, Roskill, Munster 
and Weld

29 August 1898

219
Letter from Witham, Roskill, Munster and Weld to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning 
the sale of 22 Hill Street.  They have heard from Osborn and Mercer that Mr Bonnett has 
handed over the keys to the stables, and that they presume he has settled the rent.

Witham, Roskill, Munster 
and Weld

2 September 1898

220 Letter from Witham, Roskill, Munster and Weld to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning 
the sale of 22 Hill Street enclosing a copy of a letter from Osborn and Mercer.  The copy is on 
the back and says Osborn and Mercer have received £38 rent from Mr Bonnett for the 
period 10 May‐2 August.

Witham, Roskill, Munster 
and Weld

3 September 1898

221 Letter from Osborn and Mercer to Messrs Witham and Co, asking for a decision about 
putting 22 Hill Street up for auction.  

Osborn and Mercer 27 September 1898

222 Letter from  Witham, Roskill, Munster and Weld, to Fr [Vincent] Hornyold [SJ], 
acknowledging his decision to put 22 Hill Street up for auction. They have told Osborne 
[Osborn] and Mercer that their expenses are not to be more than £40.

Witham, Roskill, Munster 
and Weld

5 October 1898

223
List of documents relating to the sale of 22 Hill Street. mid 20th century

224
Letter from  Witham, Roskill, Munster and Weld, to Fr [Vincent] Hornyold [SJ], saying 
Osborne [Osborn] and Mercer have informed them it is too late to put the property up for 
auction on the 1 November [1898] but will put it up on the 22 [November 1898].  Osborn 
and Mercer have given assurances to keep expenses as low as possible, at around £40.

Witham, Roskill, Munster 
and Weld

7 October 1898

225 Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Vincent] Hornyold [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street.  Enquires whether Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] is back as he wishes to speak to him 
about the ground rent.

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

14 October 1898

226 Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street, discussing the ground rent.  Also they need to decide on a reserve for the house at 
the auction on 22 November [1898].

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

2 November 1898
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227 Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 

Street.  He suggests £10000 as a reserve, and comments that although the house might not 
sell at the auction, it may lead to a later sale.

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

7 November 1898

228 Letter from Osborn and Mercer to Messrs Witham and Co, about the sale of 22 Hill Street, 
suggesting a reserve of £9000.

Osborn and Mercer 8 November 1898

229 Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street.  Notwithstanding Osborn and Mercer's suggested reserve of £9000, he advises a 
reserve of £10000.

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

9 November 1898

230 Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street, stating that the house did not sell at that day's auction but that there are some 
people interested in it.

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

22 November 1898

231
Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street.  He advises either to spend money on modernising the house or to wait for the right 
buyer to come along.  He is in favour of waiting and against spending money.

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

25 November 1898

232
Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street. He will call in to see him later this morning.

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

30 November 1898

233 Letter from Osborn and Mercer to Messrs. Witham and Co, concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street, saying that several people are interested but that they have received no definitive 
offers.

Osborn and Mercer 13 December 1898

234
Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street. He is keeping Osborn and Mercer working on their behalf.

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

14 December 1898

235
Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street. There is some interest in the house from a son of Sir William Harcourt.  Meanwhile 
he encloses a letter from a builder giving his opinion on the state of the house.

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

20 December 1898 Enclosure not preserved.

236 Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street. He is very worried about the house and wants to consult with Mr Thomas Eyre as to 
the question of spending money on modernising it.

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

12 January 1899

237 Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street.  He will meet with Mr [Thomas] Eyre after a few days.  He is beginning to feel very 
vindictive towards Lord Camperdown about this matter.

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

13 January 1899

238 Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street.  He has spoken with Mr [William] Eyre and will come to talk with [Fr Charnley] on 
Thursday.  People have been looking at the house and talking about alterations they would 
make.

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

17 January 1899

239
Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street. He will call on the Princess tomorrow.

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

19 January 1899
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240

List of documents relating to the sale of 22 Hill Street. mid 20th century

241 Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street.  He has heard nothing more from the Princess, but if [Fr Charnley] wants him to call 
on her on Monday, he should let him know.  

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

21 January 1899

242‐243
Letter from Osborn and Mercer to Witham, Roskill, Munster and Weld, concerning the sale 
of 22 Hill Street. They have received an offer of £7350 from Mr Jenks, a speculator who is 
doing up the house across the road.  He might be willing to increase the offer to £7500.  

Osborn and Mercer 14 March 1899

244 Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street. He encloses a letter from Osborn and Mercer.  He suggests [Fr Charnley] speaks to 
Mr Thomas  Eyre.

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

15 March 1899

245
Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street. Mr Buckmaster has not yet committed to pay £8000 for the property, but there is 
also the offer of £7350 which might be increased to £7500 through Osborn and Mercer.  This 
is as much as a builder is likely to pay and they may wait for months for a private buyer.

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

27 March 1899

246 Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street. He is still waiting to hear from Mr Buckmaster about the offer of £8000, but has little 
hope.

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

29 March 1899

247
Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street. He is still hoping that Mr Buckmaster will buy the property for £8000.

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

30 March1899

248 Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street. He has not yet closed the deal on the property as he is hoping to get over £7500, but 
is doubtful that he will succeed.

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

7 April 1899

249 Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street. He has not been able to get more than £7500, so he has sold the property for that 
amount through Osborn and Mercer.

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

10 April 1899

250
Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street. Mr Bonnett has made an offer of £40 for the tenancy of the Farm Street stables from 
the 1 May [1899] to the end of July [1899]. For the Hill Street property, completion will not 
happen by next Monday as hoped, but it will happen soon and then they will settle the Fire 
Policy too.  Post Scriptum,  he asks if  [Fr Alexander Charnley SJ] and Fr [Joseph]Bampton [SJ] 
and Fr [John] Gray [SJ] could sign the deed tomorrow morning.

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

28 April 1899
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251

Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street. He is having difficulty with Osborn and Mercer's accounts and thinks they have 
charged too much.  They have sent a cheque which for £481 which is the balance of £788 
received from Mr Jenks and Mr Bonnett.  He will pay it into the account at the National 
Provincial Bank of England, which he thinks is in the names of [Fr Alexander Charnley SJ]  and 
Fr [Joseph]Bampton [SJ] and Fr [John] Gray [SJ].

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

5 May 1899

252 Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street. Osborn and Mercer have returned to him £19.17.6 but he feels they should still 
refund a further £26.57.

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

9 May 1899

253 Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street. He is sending documents, which he lists over leaf, which were not handed over to the 
purchaser and should be kept with the Farm Street deeds.

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

24 May 1899

254
Account from Osborn and Mercer for £33.0.0 Osborn and Mercer 28 July 1899

255
Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ] concerning the sale of 22 Hill 
Street. Enclosing a cheque for £31.2.0 from Osborn and Mercer.

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

29 July 1899

256 Letter from Richard Witham to Fr [Alexander] Charnley [SJ]. The nuns in Brompton Square 
can not take over the house as there is a restrictive clause saying the property must be used 
as a private dwelling.  He encloses a telegram from Mr Buckmaster who is keen to sell.  Mr 
Holland won't buy at any price.  Asks if he sould write to Mr Buckmaster to say that he will 
accept no less than £8500.

Richard Witham of Witham, 
Roskill, Munster and Weld

nd Enclosure not preserved.

257
Correspondance relating to Leicester Fields Estate. mid 20th century

258‐261
Catalogue of household furniture at 11 Leicester Place, to be sold at auction on 9 June 1834.

E Foster and son, 
Auctioneers

1834

262‐263 Letter from Norris Ston, of Lincoln's Inn to Fr R[andal] Lythgoe [SJ] concerning the mis‐use of 
a property, possibly in Leicester Square and possibly as a gambling house.  The owner of the 
property, Mr Banham, should be informed.  

Norris Ston 15 July 1840

264 Letter from Edward Maxwell, Surveyor of Pavements to [Fr] Randall [Randal] Lythgoe [SJ] 
concerning the formation of a direct road from Oxford Street to Leicester Square, by way of 
Dean Street and Leicester Place.  This  will necessitate the demolition of houses in Lisle 
Street and Gerrard Street.

Edward Maxwell, Surveyor of 
Pavements

16 October 1844
Damaged at the bottom and stained, some of 
the text hard to read.

265 Letter from Palmer, Palmer and Bull to [Fr] E[dward] J Hood [SJ] about the change of use of 
the former Sans Souci Theatre, now used as a furniture store.

Palmer, Palmer and Bull 5 October 1857

266 Letter from Palmer, Palmer and Bull to [Fr] Henry McCann [SJ], concerning rents at Leicester 
Place of £548.6.2 paid to the credit of [Fr] Seed and [Fr Henry] McCann.

Palmer, Palmer and Bull 31 August 1869

267 Newspaper cutting from The Times, from F. Clark and Co., concerning land in Leicester 
Square which will be let on a building lease.  This is pasted on to a letter from Palmer, 
Palmer and Bull, to [Fr] [James] Foley [SJ] saying they will oppose the erection of houses at 
this site.

Palmer, Palmer and Bull 4 June 1870
Creator of newspaper cutting, The Times 
newspaper.
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268 Letter from Charles Bull to [Fr] Henry Foley [SJ].  Mr Varques, the tenant of 9, Leicester Sq 

which he runs as a hotel has purchased the lease of 7, Leicester Sq and wants permission to 
extend his hotel into it.  He went to the offices of F. Clark and Co, which appeared to be 
untenanted and empty.

Charles Bull 17 June 1870

269
Letter from Charles Bull to [Fr] H[enry] Foley [SJ] has added the Fathers Johnson's names to 
the list of those opposed to the Lisle Street and Leicester Sq scheme of the Euston, St 
Pancras and Charing Cross Railway.  He also wants to look at the conveyance of the Leicester 
Fields property to the Fathers Johnson from [Fr] [Randal] Lithgo[e] [SJ].

Charles Bull 15 December 1870
The 'Fathers Johnson' are Fr Joseph Johnson SJ 
and  Fr William Johnson SJ

270
Letter from Palmer, Palmer and Bull to [Fr] Joseph Johnson [SJ], concerning 11 Leicester 
Place, leased to Mr Greatorex, who  wants to raise a mortgage on the lease.  Asks  [Fr] 
Joseph Johnson [SJ] and [Fr] William Johnson to sign the licence allowing this.

Palmer, Palmer and Bull 10 January 1871

271 Letter from Charles Bull to [Fr] [Henry] McCann, because [Fr Henry] Foley [SJ] is away, 
concerning the counterpart lease of Leicester Square.  The property is occupied by Mrs 
Hammond, and the rent is paid by Mrs Chandler.

Charles Bull 11 January 1871

272‐273 Letter from Palmer, Palmer and Bull to F[r] [Henry] Foley [SJ] concerning the proposed sale 
of the freehold of the centre of Leicester Sq by its owners, and Cubitt's mortgage, and the 
leases of 7 and 8 Leicester Square.

Palmer, Palmer and Bull 14 August 1872

274‐275
Letter from Charles Bull to [Fr] Henry Foley [SJ].  He acknowledges resceipt of the Deed of 
Exchange of 5 March 1791.  He gives  him the Transfer of 5 August 1871 from Mr Cardwell to 
Mr Knight. Discusses the  whether the centre of Leicester Sq can be built on.

Charles Bull 9 September 1872

276 Letter from Charles Bull to [Fr] H[enry] Foley [SJ] concerning the ground in the middle of 
Leicester Square.  He has had an application for a loan of £50000 secured on the ground 
there said to be worth £120000.  The freeholder appears to be intending to build on this 
land.

Charles Bull 19 July 1873

277 Letter from Charles Bull to [Fr] Henr y Foley [SJ].  Refers to the decision of the Master of the 
Rolls about the enclosure of Leicester Sq.  The Tulk family will now need to remove the 
hoardings and replace the railings.

Charles Bull 8 December 1873

278 Letter from Charles Bull to [Fr] George Sidgreaves [SJ] concerning the rent on the Leicester 
Fields Estate, and specifically on 37 Lisle Street.

Charles Bull 2 March 1875

279‐280 Letter from Charles Bull to [Fr] Henry Foley [SJ] concerning the renewal of leases in the 
Leicester Fields Estate.

Charles Bull 24 May 1875

281 Letter from Charles Bull to  [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] concerning the ownership of the 
freehold of 2 Duncan Place, located near Leicester Square and Leicester Place.  Also 
discusses the lease on 37 Lisle Street, held by Mr Raymond who wants to assign in to Mr I.F. 
Schut.  Charles Bull advises against this. 

Charles Bull 23 March 1876

282 Letter from Charles Bull to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves and [Fr] Henry Foley [SJ] about 2 Duncan 
Place.  Mr Vargues who intends to purchase the underlease runs a respectable hotel and 
there is not reason not to grant him a licence.

Charles Bull 4 April 1876
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283 Letter from Arthur Langdale to Fr Peter Gallwey SJ, about negotiations between the Society 

and the Marist Fathers about the freehold of property in Leicester Place, previously 
interrupted by a railway scheme. [See folio 269 above]. The Marist Fathers want to reopen 
negotiations.

Arthur Langdale 23 March 1877

284 Letter from [Fr Peter] Gallwey [SJ] concerning the letter from Arthur Langdale, doubting that 
he is a trustworthy person, and advising caution.

[Fr] [Peter] Gallwey [SJ] 25 March [1877] English and Latin
Recipient unknown, perhaps [Fr] George 
Sidgreaves [SJ]

285 Letter from Arthur Langdale to [Fr] George Sidgreaves [SJ] asking to make an appointment to 
see him.

Arthur Langdale 5 April 1877

286‐287 Letter from Charles Faure S.M. to Fr [George] Sidgreaves [SJ] about the decision the Society 
is to make about the value of the ground and building occupied by the French Church, School 
and priests' house, in Leicester Place.  He outlines what a poor condition they are currently 
in.  

Charles Faure S.M. 1 May [1877]

288 Letter from Arthur Langdale to [Fr George] Sidgreaves [SJ] concerning the leases of the 
Leicester Place Estate.  

Arthur Langdale 10 October 1877

289
Letter from Arthur Langdale to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves SJ, wanting to deal with the matter 
of the leases of  Leicester Place without delay, now that Fr Jones is back in England.

Arthur Langdale 19 November 1877

290 Letter from Charles Bull to [Fr] George Sidgreaves [SJ] concerning the ground rent on the 
Leicester Fields estate, in particular Burford's Panorama including 5 Leicester Place, which 
was purchased by Mr Charles Walker in 1863 for 27 years, through whom Mr Faure makes 
his claim.  

Charles Bull 21 November 1877

291 Letter from [Fr] George  Sidgreaves [SJ] There may be some difficulties about selling part of 
the property in the centre of the block, and he feels it will be a higher price than the 
recipient's clients will be willing to pay.

 [Fr] George  Sidgreaves [SJ] 22 November 1877 Recipient unknown, perhaps Arthur Langdale.

292 Letter from A J Blount to Fr [George] Sidgreaves [SJ], enclosing a receipt and asking him for 
instruction to prepare the Contract of Sale with Fr Faure.

A J Blount, of Tucker Blount 
& Co

21 October 1878 Enclosure not preserved.

293
Letter from Charles Bull to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] enclosing a letter from Mr Fowler. Charles Bull 2 December 1878

294 Copy of a letter from Charles Fowler concerning restrictions to the lease on the Leicester 
Fields Estate, originally made in 1794 from Wright to Barker.  Specifically  mentioned are 
restrictions to the height of the rotunda of the church, and that new windows overlooking 
the adjoining buildings are not allowed.  

[Charles Fowler] 28 November 1878 Creator not given

295 Letter from Charles Bull to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] accompanying an agreement to sale 
and plans [of  properties in the  Leicester Fields estate].

Charles Bull 23 January 1879 Enclosure not preserved.

296 Letter from A J Blount to Fr G[eorge] Sidgreaves SJ, concerning Leicester Place, saying that Fr 
Faure will pay £2000 but would prefer a reduction in price.

A J Blount, of Tucker Blount 
& Co

29 January 1879

297
Letter from Charles Bull to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves.  The draft contract has been modified as 
[Fr] [Henry] Foley [SJ] requested and will be sent to Fr Faure tomorrow.  4 and 6 Leicester 
Place may be included in the purchase for an additional sum.

Charles Bull 31 January 1879

298‐299 Letter from  Charles Bull to [Fr] Henry Foley [SJ] concerning the draft agreement for the sale 
of property [on the Leicester Fields Estate].

Charles Bull 31 January 1879
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300 Letter from Charles Bull to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] saying that he has heard from Mr 

Faure's solicitor that the sale  [of the property in  Leicester Fields] can be completed on 24 
June [1879]

Charles Bull 3 April 1879

301 Letter from Charles Bull to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] about the sale of property in 
Leicester Fields.  

Charles Bull 26 May 1879

302 Letter from Charles Bull to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] [about the sale of property in 
Leicester Fields] saying that Mr Faure's solicitor has asked if the mortgage money of £6000 
can be paid in £500 instalments.

Charles Bull 12 June 1879

303 Letter from Charles Bull to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] [about the sale of property in 
Leicester Fields] saying that the purchaser's solicitors want a second mortgage, and that he 
thinks this is not acceptable.

Charles Bull 14 June 1879

304
Copy of a letter from Elizabeth Hammond to Palmer, Bull and Company, saying that the wall 
separating Duncan Place from the site of Saville House needs attention.

[Elizabeth Hammond] 7 October 1879 Creator not given

305 Letter from Charles Bull to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] saying that the Post Office has 
established a parcels office in the houses opposite those used by Varques and that he has 
complained of the noise.  Later note on the back saying that he has inspected the site and it 
seems suitable for a parcels office, and that the noise might be abated if the street were 
asphalted.

Charles Bull 2 August 1883

306‐309 Letter from L. Thomas to the Father Provincial of the English Province, putting the case for 
selling 11 Leicester Place to the Committee of the French Hospital.

L. Thomas 26 Jaunuary 1886 French

310 Letter from L. Thomas to the Father Provincial of the English Province, discussing a proposed 
sale of 11 Leicester Place to the Committee of the French Hospital, and also of a property in 
Lisle Street.

L. Thomas 3 March 1886 French

311 List of notes and questions about the Leicester Place property.  Note on the back that the 
General was supportive and that they did not accept the offered terms.

nd

312 Letter from Charles Bull to [Fr] George  Sidgreaves [SJ] about  the legal details of a memorial 
paid for by Rev and Mrs Heathcote.

Charles Bull 4 March 1890

313 Letter from Charles Bull to [Fr] George  Sidgreaves [SJ] about meeting him and Rev and Mrs 
Heathcote.  Also details legal dealings with the lessees of Leicester Place, Mr Maples, and Mr 
Nati, the lessee of the Empire Theatre.

Charles Bull 15 March 1890

314 Letter from A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch and Petre to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves about 
insurance on 11 Leicester Place.

 A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch 
and Petre

28 October 1890

315 Insurance document issued by the Alliance Life and Fire Assurance Company for 11 Leicester 
Place.

Alliance Life and Fire 
Assurance Company

25 March 1875

316 Letter from  A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch and Petre to [Fr] [George] Sidgreaves concerning 
Leicester Fields.  The deeds have been drawn up on stamped parchment and can be dated 
later. Also mentions a proposal for the Rymer Family.

 A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch 
and Petre

1 May 1892

317 Letter from  A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch and Petre to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves concerning a 
rent account from Leicester Fields.  

 A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch 
and Petre

13 May 1892



Calendar of Bound Volumes MSB/4 College of St Ignatius College of St Ignatius 1807‐1909 21

Folio Description Creator Date Language Notes
318‐319 Copy of a letter from Charles Fowler to Blount, Lynch and Petre concerning works on the 

Leicester Fields Estate.  The builders state that the work will be  more costly than originally 
estimated.

[Charles Fowler] 2 November 1892 Creator not given

320‐321 Copy of a letter from Alfred Bush and Sons, builders, to C[harles] Fowler Esq, explaining and 
accounting why the building work on 10 Leicester Place and 40 Lisle Street have run over 
budget.

[Alfred Bush and Sons, 
builders]

3 May 1893 Creator not given

322‐323 Copy of a letter from Charles Fowler to Blount, Lynch and Petre concerning works on the 
Leicester Fields Estates, stating that the extra money asked for by the builders, Alfred Bush 
and Sons, is fair and that he recommends it is paid.

[Charles Fowler] 4 May 1893 Creator not given

324
Letter from  A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch and Petre to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] 
concerning the Leicester Fields estate.  He encloses documents for signiature by [Fr Sir 
William Arthur] Heathcote [SJ], [Fr] King [SJ], [Fr] Baldwin [SJ], and [Fr John] Proctor [SJ] for 
the lease of 11 Leicester Place to Mr Crook, for a licence for Mr Crook to use it as a club, and 
for a licence for the Mortgage of 9 Leicester Place to transfer the mortgage to Mrs Cohen.

 A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch 
and Petre

5 May 1893

325 Letter from Blount Lynch and Petre to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] about rent on the 
Leicester Fields estate to be paid into the account held in [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ]'s 
name and that of [Fr] A[rthur] G Knight [SJ].

Blount, Lynch and Petre 19 August 1895

326 Letter from  A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch and Petreto [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves about the 
Leicester Fields Estate, 1 and 2 Leicester Place and 10 and 11 Leicester Square.  The 
Postmaster General's lease will be soon expire, and he will have to rebuild a party wall taken 
down.  There is a dispute as the line of the original party wall.  He encloses a letter from 
Charles Fowler.

 A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch 
and Petre

12 November 1895

327
Copy of a letter from Charles Fowler to Blount, Lynch and Petre. The plan of the buildings at 
1 and 2 Leicester Place, originally made by Mr Foxall, appears to be wrong and shows the 
boundary wall 5 feet out of place.  He asks if any older plans exist, if not the boundary will be 
placed on the line of the existing wall in the basement. 

Charles Fowler 7 November 1895

328 Letter from  A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch and Petre to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] about 
the Leicester Fields estate.  He encloses a copy of a letter from Marshall and Haslip, solicitors 
for Mr Baker, lessee for the Hotel de Paris.

 A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch 
and Petre

19 November 1895

329
Copy of a letter from Marshal Haslip, solicitors for Mr Richar d Baker, enquiring about the 
lease of the properties on the opposite side of Leicester Place to the Hotel de Paris.

[Marshal Haslip, solicitors] 15 November 1895 Creator not given

330 Letter from   A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch and Petre to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] about 
the Leicester Fields Estate, discussing the necessity for Mr Baker to decide quickly if he 
wants to take the lease on the properties.

 A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch 
and Petre

21 November 1895

331
Letter from   A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch and Petre to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] about 
the Leicester Fields Estate, and advising him that leasing 10 Leicester Square to Mr Baker on 
a short lease would make good financial sense, due to the dilapidation of the buildings.

 A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch 
and Petre

26 November 1895
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332

Letter from   A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch and Petre to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] about 
the Leicester Fields Estate, with reference to the dilapidations done by the Post Office. The 
Post Office are refusing to reinstate the building back to 4 individual houses, and there is no 
new plan of the properties, only the survey made by Mr Foxall in 1840.

 A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch 
and Petre

12 February 1896

333
Letter from   A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch and Petre to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] about 
the Leicester Fields Estate, with reference to the dilapidations done by the Post Office. He 
encloses a letter of authority for signiature by [Fr][Sir] [William] [Arthur] Heathcote [SJ], [Fr] 
King [SJ], [Fr] Baldwin [SJ], and [Fr] [John] Proctor [SJ].

 A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch 
and Petre

10 April 1896

334 Letter from Blount Lynch and Petre to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] about rent on the 
Leicester Fields estate.

Blount, Lynch and Petre 2 June 1896

335
Letter from  A J Blount to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] about the Leicester Fields Estate, with 
reference to the Hotel de Paris.  He feels the staircase in the proposed new building is too 
narrow, and encloses a copy of a letter from Mr Fowler on the subject.

A J Blount 19 June 1896

336
Copy of a letter from Nash, Field and Co to Blount, Lynch and Petre, setting out the terms of 
the offer to rent the building site in Leicester Square and Leicester Place.

[Nash, Field and Co] 24 July 1896 Creator not given

337
Copy of a letter from Charles Fowler to Blount, Lynch and Petre, about the Leicester Fields 
Estate, Post Office site, recomending that Mr Baker's offer of £639 for the site be accepted. 

[Charles Fowler] 18 August 1896 Creator not given

338 Letter from Blount Lynch and Petre to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] about the Leicester Fields 
estate, Post Office site.  They have refused the offer from the Partington Advertisisng 
Company, and now that Mr Baker has returned from Germany can proceed with letting the 
Post Office site to him for £650 pa.

Blount, Lynch and Petre 5 October 1896

339
Letter from  A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch and Petre to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] about 
the Leicester Fields Estate, asking if he would consider selling the freehold for £20000.

 A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch 
and Petre

15 November 1897

340
Letter from   A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch and Petre to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] about 
the Leicester Fields Estate, Post Office Site, recomending that he does sell the freehold.  

 A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch 
and Petre

18 November 1897

341 Letter from   A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch and Petre to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] about 
the Leicester Fields Estate, Post Office Site, suggesting that he buys up the adjoining freehold 
for £13000 and lets both sites to Mr Baker for £1300 pa, on condition that he can build one 
building across  the sites.  

 A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch 
and Petre

30 June 1898

342 Letter from  A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch and Petre to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] about 
the Leicester Fields Estate, 37 Lisle Street.  The premises have been relet to Mr Fielding, a 
saddler and harness maker, who is paying £80 pa on a repairing lease.  He encloses a licence 
for [Fr Sir William Arthur] Heathcote [SJ], [Fr] King [SJ], [Fr] Baldwin [SJ], and [Fr] [John] 
Proctor [SJ] to sign.

 A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch 
and Petre

25 June 1903
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343

Page of notes and figures about Leicester Fields. [A J Blount] 30 June 1903

344 Extract from the letters of Fr Reginald Colley [SJ] (Provincial) Writen 26 August 1903……Leave 
has come to sell the Leicester Square property…….the proceeds to be invested for the Arca 
Seminarii.

[Fr] Reginald Colley SJ

345
Letter from  A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch and Petre to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] about 
the Leicester Fields Estate.  He acknowledges receipt of agreement to sell 34 and 35 Lisle 
Street to the Marist Fathers.  The sale of 14 to 18 Lisle Street is being held up by the lessees.

 A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch 
and Petre

24 October 1903

346
Letter from Walter Emden to [Fr] Sir William [Arthur] Heathcote [SJ] about his clients, J and 
W Nicholson and Co who wish to turn the Queen's Hotel into a theatre.

Walter Emden 25 April 1906

347‐348
Copy of a letter from George Dance to the Trustees of the Leicester Estate Office, about the 
sites of the Queens Hotel and Hotel de Paris.  He points out that as a hotel is a failure but 
that his proposed theatre on the site will be perfect and decorous.

George Dance 28 June 1909

349‐350
Letter from  A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch and Petre to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] about 
the Leicester Fields Estate, the Queens Hotel. Encloses a letter from Charles Dance, wanting 
to buy the lease on the hotel and change its use to a theatre.  Mr Baker has gone bankrupt 
and the new owners of the leasehold, J and W Nicholson and Co, have lost  money on it and 
are keen for it to become a theatre.

 A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch 
and Petre

28 June 1909

351
Letter from  A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch and Petre to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] about 
the Leicester Fields Estate.  He encloses a letter from  J and W Nicholson and Co.

 A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch 
and Petre

02 July 1909

352‐354 Letter from J and W Nicholson and Co explaining why they feel the site of the Queens Hotel 
and the Hotel de Paris should be converted into a single theatre.

J and W Nicholson and Co. 01 July 1909

355 Letter from  A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch and Petre to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ] about 
the Leicester Fields Estate, the Queens Hotel. He encloses a letter from J and W Nicholson 
and Co.

 A. J. Blount of  Blount, Lynch 
and Petre

12 July 1909

356 Copy of a letter from Nash, Field and Co to Blount, Lynch and Petre, about the Leicester 
Square Estate, Queens Hotel.  States that if a building lease and then a licence are granted to 
enable a theatre to be built on the whole site, then a premium rent will be paid of £80 pa or 
a lump sum of £2000.

[Nash, Field and Co] 09 July 1909 Creator not given

357 Letter from Blount Lynch and Petre to [Fr] G[eorge] Sidgreaves [SJ]  accompanying a cheque 
for £64.2.4, which is half of the interest due from the Marist fathers.

Blount, Lynch and Petre 23 July 1909

358
List and description of documents relating to Tunbridge Wells. mid 20th century

359 Certificate for St Augustine's Catholic Chapel to be used as a Place of Meeting for Religious 
Worship.  Signed by [Fr] William Rowe [SJ].

7 January 1856

360 Letter from Joseph Searle to Fr [Thomas] Clarke [SJ], that he will purchase Fr Clarke's 
furniture himself, and pay for it in installments.

Joseph Searle 4 January 1867
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361 Letter from Joseph Searle to Fr [Thomas] Clarke [SJ], about the purchase of furniture and the 

time of payment.
Joseph Searle 9 September 1867

362
Copy of a letter from [Fr Thomas Clarke SJ], saying that Joseph Searle had wanted to buy the 
furniture and had agreed to pay by June.  He was not forced into buying it.

 [Fr Thomas Clarke SJ] 12 September 1867
Note in the same hand saying the original is in 
Wardour Castle.  Creator not given.

363 Letter from Joseph Searle to Fr [Thomas] Clarke [SJ], about payment for furniture.  He wants 
to settle the matter, but if he has to pay now he will sell his vestments to do so, for around 
£100.  He has written to Fr [Peter] Gallwey [SJ] about this matter, but has yet to hear the 
decision of the Provincial.

Joseph Searle 14 September 1867

364 Letter from Joseph Searle to Fr [Thomas] Clarke [SJ], saying that Fr Clarke had not told Fr 
[Peter] Gallwey [SJ] fully about their agreement.  He does not want any more 
correspondence on the matter and merely wishes to know what he is to do.

Joseph Searle 19 September 1867

365 Statement of income for Tunbridge Wells.  The buildings and contents are insured in the 
names of [Fr] R[andal] Lythgoe [SJ and [Fr] R[ichard] Norris [SJ].

nd

366 Letter from  George Graham, Registrar General to [Fr] W[illiam] Brindle [SJ], saying that he 
has received notice that an unauthorised marriage, of Timothy Leary and Ann Leary, has 
taken place at the Catholic Chapel at Tunbridge Wells.

George Graham, Registrar 
General.

15 October 1855

367
Letter from [Fr] William Brindle [SJ] to Fr [Edward] Hood [SJ], explaining the pains he had 
taken to ensure that Timothy Leary and Ann Leary had a valid marriage licence.

[Fr] William Brindle [SJ] nd

368 Letter from  George Graham, Registrar General to [Fr] [Edward] T[heophilus] Hood [SJ], 
saying that having had legal advice, a Roman Catholic priest who marries a couple who have 
already married in a Protestant Church would be breaking the lay and might be tried for 
Felony.

George Graham, Registrar 
General.

26 December 1855
Tunbridge Wells Case' written on the top in 
pencil.

369 Printed notice titled 'Caution against the solemnisation of Clandestine Marriages'. Gives 
details of a Roman Catholic priest convicted of felony for solemnising a marriage in Fulham 
without the correct authority having been obtained.

George Graham, Registrar 
General.

5 December 1854
Fr W. Brindles case' written on the top in red 
ink.

370‐371
Printed notice titled 'Requisites to a lawful marriage in a registered building'.

George Graham, Registrar 
General.

1 January 1856
Tunbridge Wells Case' written on the top in 
pencil.


